

Shirley N. Weber, Ph.D. California Secretary of State

2024 General Election Report: Voter's Choice Act

VoteCal Data on the November 2024 General Election May 2025

Contact Information For more information about the Voter's Choice Act, visit https://www.sos.ca.gov/voters-choice-act. Contact us by email at <u>voterschoice@sos.ca.gov</u> 1500 11th Street, Sacramento, California 95814

This report is also available online at www.sos.ca.gov

Contents

Voter's Choice Act Report:	1
the 2024 General Election	1
Contents	2
About the California Secretary of State	3
Background	3
Special Note About This Report	4
VoteCal Data 2024 General Election	6
(i) Voter turnout	6
(ii) Voter registration	9
(iii) Ballot rejection rates	3
(iv) Reasons for ballot rejection	7
(v) Provisional ballot use	2
(vi) Accessible vote by mail ballot use	6
(vii) The number of votes cast at each vote center / Polling Place	0
(viii) The number of ballots returned at ballot drop-off locations	4
(ix) The number of ballots returned by mail	8
(x) The number of persons who registered to vote at a vote center	2

About the California Secretary of State

The California Office of the Secretary of State is committed to adhering to the highest standards of integrity and transparency, supporting businesses, strengthening democracy, protecting individual rights, preserving our state's history, delivering quality services, and providing accessible resources and trusted information.

The California Secretary of State's responsibilities include:

- Serving as the state's Chief Elections Officer
- Implementing electronic filing and Internet disclosure of campaign and lobbyist financial information
- Maintaining business filings
- Commissioning notaries public
- Operating the Safe at Home confidential address program
- Maintaining the Domestic Partners and Advance Health Care Directive Registries
- Safeguarding the State Archives
- Serving as a trustee of the California Museum

Background

The Voter's Choice Act (VCA), established by Senate Bill 450 (Allen, Hertzberg, et al., Chapter 832, Statutes of 2016), aims to enhance voting accessibility in California. This legislation introduces a voter-centered model designed to increase electoral participation and provide voters with more flexible options for civic engagement.

Key features of the VCA's modernized election system include:

- Automatic mail-in ballots for all active, registered voters
- Extended in-person early voting periods of up to 10 days
- County-wide vote centers allowing ballot casting at any location within the voter's county
- Convenient, secure ballot drop box locations throughout each county

To implement this system, the VCA mandates that counties develop a comprehensive Election Administration Plan (EAP). This plan serves two primary purposes:

- 1. Informing voters about their expanded voting options
- 2. Outlining strategies for voter education and community outreach

The VCA emphasizes community involvement in the electoral process. It requires county election officials to actively seek and incorporate community input in planning and administering elections, ensuring that diverse voices are heard in shaping local voting systems.

Special Note About This Report

Elections Code 4005 (g) (1) (A)¹ states, "Within six months of each election conducted pursuant to this section or Section 4007, the Secretary of State shall report to the Legislature, to the extent possible, all of the following information by categories of race, ethnicity, language preference, age, gender, disability, permanent vote by mail status, historical polling place voters, political party affiliation, and language minorities as it relates to the languages required under subdivision (a) of Section 14201 and Section 203 of the federal Voting Rights Act of 1965 (52 U.S.C. Sec. 10101 et seq.):

(i) Voter turnout.
(ii) Voter registration.
(iii) Ballot rejection rates.
(iv) Reasons for ballot rejection.
(v) Provisional ballot use.
(vi) Accessible vote by mail ballot use.
(vii) The number of votes cast at each vote center.
(viii) The number of ballots returned at ballot drop-off locations.
(ix) The number of ballots returned by mail.
(x) The number of persons who registered to vote at a vote center.
(xi) Instances of voter fraud.
(xii) Any other problems that became known to the county elections official or the Secretary of State during the election or canvass."

This report provides aggregate data from VoteCal for reporting categories: Age, Language Preference, and Political Party.

Additionally, Statewide data from the Secretary of State's November 5th Statement of the Vote is included below.

- Statewide ballots cast 16,140,044
- VBM ballots cast Statewide 13,034,378 (80.76%)
- Ballots cast in person Statewide (at precincts or vote centers) 3,105,666 (19.24%)

Data related to Race, Ethnicity, Gender, disability, and language minorities are not part of the voter registration form and as a result, counties are not authorized to collect that information.

¹ This report fulfills statutory reporting requirements. It is descriptive in nature and does not evaluate policy impacts.

Interpretive Note on Data Limitations

This report provides descriptive statistics drawn from the state's VoteCal database, as required by Elections Code section 4005(g)(1)(A). While it presents detailed comparisons across counties, voting methods, and voter demographics, the report does not evaluate the causes of these observed differences. The data should not be interpreted as demonstrating the effects of the Voter's Choice Act or any other policy change. Further research would be necessary to assess causal impacts using appropriate analytic methods.

VoteCal Data 2024 General Election

(i) Voter turnout²

Voter turnout by Age Range

	Non-VCA Counties (Non-VCA) - 2024 General Election			VCA Counties (VCA) - 2024 General Election			State		
Age Range	Total Registered Voters	Turnout Number	Turnout Rate	Total Registered Voters	Turnout Number	Turnout Rate	Total Registered Voters	Turnout Number	Turnout Rate
18-25	643,982	365,278	56.72%	2,166,473	1,331,240	61.45%	2,810,455	1,696,516	60.37%
26-35	912,993	518,950	56.84%	3,215,929	1,913,767	59.51%	4,128,922	2,432,716	58.92%
36-45	830,680	560,853	67.52%	2,907,924	1,998,285	68.72%	3,738,604	2,559,140	68.45%
46-55	708,888	525,365	74.11%	2,603,688	1,959,119	75.24%	3,312,576	2,484,484	75.00%
56-65	759,699	599,536	78.92%	2,734,254	2,161,905	79.07%	3,493,953	2,761,442	79.03%
66+	1,124,031	935,751	83.25%	3,987,118	3,266,319	81.92%	5,111,149	4,202,068	82.21%
Unknown DOB	0	6	0.00%	0	34	0.00%	0	40	0.00%
Total	4,980,273	3,505,739	70.39%	17,615,386	12,630,669	71.70%	22,595,659	16,136,406	71.41%

	VCA Counties Except LA (VCA) - 2024 General Election			Los Angeles Election	Los Angeles (VCA) - 2024 General Election			
Age Range	Registered Voters	Turnout Number	Turnout Rate	Registered Voters	Turnout Number	Turnout Rate		
18-25	1,477,344	920,336	62.30%	689,129	410,904	59.63%		
26-35	2,047,068	1,245,606	60.85%	1,168,861	668,161	57.16%		
36-45	1,918,664	1,371,775	71.50%	989,260	626,510	63.33%		
46-55	1,770,622	1,378,903	77.88%	833,066	580,216	69.65%		
56-65	1,879,106	1,539,430	81.92%	855,148	622,475	72.79%		
66+	2,777,368	2,373,219	85.45%	1,209,750	893,100	73.83%		
Unknown DOB	0	33	0.00%	0	1	0.00%		
Total	11,870,172	8,829,302	74.38%	5,745,214	3,801,367	66.17%		

² Turnout Number - Number of accepted votes in the election (Total counted Vote By Mail (VBM) ballots, Regular Vote Center ballots, Provisional ballots, same day Conditional Voter Registration (CVR) provisional ballots, and non-Provisional "Instant" CVR ballots)

Registration Totals - 15-Day Report of Registration (ROR) eligible voter registration totals.

Turnout Rate – This is a calculated as a percentage of counted ballots as compared to the counties 15-Day eligible voter registration totals.

Note: Turnout is calculated by taking the number of counted votes and dividing that by the 15-day ROR registration counts. Counted votes consist of all ballots that have been accepted or counted in the election. Ballot types include Vote By Mail (VBM) ballots, Regular Vote Center ballots, Provisional ballots, CVR Provisional Ballots, and non-Provisional "Instant" CVR ballots."

Voter turnout by Language

	Non-VCA Cou	Inties (Non-VC	A) - 2024	VCA Counti	es (VCA) - 202	4	State			
	General Election			General Ele	General Election					
Language	Registered	Turnout	Turnout	Registered	Turnout	Turnout	Registered	Turnout	Turnout	
	Voters	Number	Rate	Voters	Number	Rate	Voters	Number	Rate	
Chinese	41,428	25,274	61.01%	114,265	65,305	57.15%	155,693	90,579	58.18%	
English	4,764,035	3,380,213	70.95%	16,704,452	12,083,735	72.34%	21,468,487	15,463,948	72.03%	
Hindi	1,295	836	64.56%	3,521	2,313	65.69%	4,816	3,149	65.39%	
Japanese	622	417	67.04%	5,485	3,284	59.87%	6,107	3,701	60.60%	
Khmer	487	228	46.82%	2,600	1,266	48.69%	3,087	1,494	48.40%	
Korean	5,032	2,748	54.61%	69,170	40,543	58.61%	74,202	43,291	58.34%	
Other	1,487	1,127	83.05%	13,792	9,749	70.69%	15,279	10,876	71.18%	
Spanish	155,508	88,852	57.14%	572,790	340,360	59.42%	728,298	429,212	58.93%	
Tagalog	3,253	2,037	62.62%	13,777	8,204	59.55%	17,030	10,241	60.14%	
Thai	829	503	60.68%	4,863	2,902	59.68%	5,692	3,405	59.82%	
Vietnamese	6,297	3,502	55.61%	110,671	73,008	65.97%	116,968	76,510	65.41%	
Total	4,980,273	3,505,737	70.39%	17,615,386	12,630,669	71.70%	22,595,659	16,136,406	71.41%	

	VCA Counties	s Except LA (V	Los Angeles	s (VCA) - 2024	General		
	General Elect	tion	Election	Election			
Language	Registered Voters	Turnout Number	Turnout Rate	Registered Voters	Turnout Number	Turnout Rate	
Chinese	62,718	37,752	60.19%	51,547	27,553	53.45%	
English	11,362,756	8,519,661	74.98%	5,341,696	3,564,074	66.72%	
Hindi	2,891	1,974	68.28%	630	339	53.81%	
Japanese	2,340	1,491	63.72%	3,145	1,793	57.01%	
Khmer	1,126	578	51.33%	1,474	688	46.68%	
Korean	29,507	18,093	61.32%	39,663	22,450	56.60%	
Other	6,641	4,895	73.71%	7,151	4,854	67.88%	
Spanish	295,376	173,261	58.66%	277,414	167,099	60.23%	
Tagalog	8,156	5,013	61.46%	5,621	3,191	56.77%	
Thai	1,732	1,098	63.39%	3,131	1,804	57.62%	
Vietnamese	96,929	65,486	67.56%	13,742	7,522	54.74%	
Total	11,870,172	8,829,302	74.38%	5,745,214	3,801,367	66.17%	

Voter turnout by Political Party

	Non-VCA Cou	nties (Non-VCA	A) - 2024	VCA Counti	es (VCA) - 202	24	State		
	General Election			General Election					
Political Party	Registered Voters	Turnout Number	Turnout Rate	Registered Voters	Turnout Number	Turnout Rate	Registered Voters	Turnout Number	Turnout Rate
American Independent	211,808	139,377	65.80%	663,226	454,278	68.50%	875,034	593,655	67.84%
Democratic	2,174,955	1,592,316	73.21%	8,180,126	6,089,860	74.45%	10,355,081	7,682,176	74.19%
Green	23,372	14,746	63.09%	84,557	54,043	63.91%	107,929	68,789	63.74%
Libertarian	53,823	32,895	61.12%	181,155	114,512	63.21%	234,978	147,407	62.73%
No Party Preference	1,051,481	599,280	56.99%	3,934,585	2,368,638	60.20%	4,986,066	2,967,918	59.52%
Other	35,842	19,475	54.34%	125,714	73,932	58.81%	161,556	93,407	57.82%
Peace and Freedom	33,109	12,749	38.51%	108,696	45,262	41.64%	141,805	58,011	40.91%
Republican	1,367,721	1,081,016	79.04%	4,270,488	3,394,278	79.48%	5,638,209	4,475,294	79.37%
Unknown	28,162	13,883	49.30%	66,839	35,866	53.66%	95,001	49,749	52.37%
Total	4,980,273	3,505,737	70.39%	17,615,386	12,630,669	71.70%	22,595,659	16,136,406	71.41%

	VCA Counties General Elect	Except LA (VC)	A) - 2024	Los Angeles (VCA) - 2024 General Election			
Political Party	Registered Voters	Turnout Number	Turnout Rate	Registered Voters	Turnout Number	Turnout Rate	
American Independent	476,550	337,071	70.73%	186,676	117,207	62.79%	
Democratic	5,185,411	3,996,749	77.08%	2,994,715	2,093,111	69.89%	
Green	57,335	38,294	66.79%	27,222	15,749	57.85%	
Libertarian	132,836	86,430	65.07%	48,319	28,082	58.12%	
No Party Preference	2,631,242	1,654,748	62.89%	1,303,343	713,890	54.77%	
Other	74,993	48,833	65.12%	50,721	25,099	49.48%	
Peace and Freedom	66,627	29,276	43.94%	42,069	15,986	38.00%	
Republican	3,214,334	2,618,363	81.46%	1,056,154	775,915	73.47%	
Unknown	30,844	19,538	63.34%	35,995	16,328	45.36%	
Total	11,870,172	8,829,302	74.38%	5,745,214	3,801,367	66.17%	

(ii) Voter registration³

Voter registration by age range

	Non-VCA Cou VCA) - 2024 G Election	•		A Counties (VCA) - State 4 General Election		
Age Range	Registration Count	Percent	Registration Count	Percent	Registration Count	Percent
18-25	643,982	12.93%	2,166,473	12.30%	2,810,455	12.44%
26-35	912,993	18.33%	3,215,929	18.26%	4,128,922	18.27%
36-45	830,680	16.68%	2,907,924	16.51%	3,738,604	16.55%
46-55	708,888	14.23%	2,603,688	14.78%	3,312,576	14.66%
56-65	759,699	15.25%	2,734,254	15.52%	3,493,953	15.46%
66+	1,124,031	22.57%	3,987,118	22.63%	5,111,149	22.62%
Total	4,980,273	100.00%	17,615,386	100.00%	22,595,659	100.00%

	VCA Counties (VCA) - 2024 G Election	•	Los Angeles (VCA) - 2024 General Election		
Age Range	Registration Count	Percent	Registration Count	Percent	
18-25	1,477,344	12.45%	689,129	11.99%	
26-35	2,047,068	17.25%	1,168,861	20.34%	
36-45	1,918,664	16.16%	989,260	17.22%	
46-55	1,770,622	14.92%	833,066	14.50%	
56-65	1,879,106	15.83%	855,148	14.88%	
66+	2,777,368	23.40%	1,209,750	21.06%	
Total	11,870,172	100.00%	5,745,214	100.00%	

³ **Registration Count** - Represents the 15-Day Report of Registration (ROR) counts for the given counties in the given election, as published by the SOS and as available via the SOS website. **Percent** - Share of registered voters out of all registered voters in county regardless of language preference, age, or political party affiliation.

Voter registration by Language

	Non-VCA Cou	nties (Non-	VCA Counties	(VCA) - 2024	State	
	VCA) - 2024 G	eneral	General Elect	ion		
	Election					
Language	Registration	Percent	Registration	Percent	Registration	Percent
	Count		Count		Count	
Chinese	41,428	0.83%	114,265	0.65%	155,693	0.69%
English	4,764,035	95.66%	16,704,452	94.83%	21,468,487	95.01%
Hindi	1,295	0.03%	3,521	0.02%	4,816	0.02%
Japanese	622	0.01%	5,485	0.03%	6,107	0.03%
Khmer	487	0.01%	2,600	0.01%	3,087	0.01%
Korean	5,032	0.10%	69,170	0.39%	74,202	0.33%
Other	1,487	0.03%	13,792	0.08%	15,279	0.07%
Spanish	155,508	3.12%	572,790	3.25%	728,298	3.22%
Tagalog	3,253	0.07%	13,777	0.08%	17,030	0.08%
Thai	829	0.02%	4,863	0.03%	5,692	0.03%
Vietnamese	6,297	0.13%	110,671	0.63%	116,968	0.52%
Total	4,980,273	100.00%	17,615,386	100.00%	22,595,659	100.00%

	VCA Counties (VCA) - 2024 G Election	•	Los Angeles (VCA) - 2024 General Election		
Language	Registration Count	Percent	Registration Count	Percent	
Chinese	62,718	0.53%	51,547	0.90%	
English	11,362,756	95.73%	5,341,696	92.98%	
Hindi	2,891	0.02%	630	0.01%	
Japanese	2,340	0.02%	3,145	0.05%	
Khmer	1,126	0.01%	1,474	0.03%	
Korean	29,507	0.25%	39,663	0.69%	
Other	6,641	0.06%	7,151	0.12%	
Spanish	295,376	2.49%	277,414	4.83%	
Tagalog	8,156	0.07%	5,621	0.10%	
Thai	1,732	0.01%	3,131	0.05%	

	96,929	0.82%	13,742	0.24%
Total	11,870,172	100.00%	5,745,214	100.00%

Voter registration by political party

	Non-VCA Cou	_		s (VCA) - 2024	State	
	VCA) - 2024 G	eneral	General Elect	tion		
	Election					
Political Party	Registration	Percent	Registration	Percent	Registration	Percent
	Count		Count		Count	
American	211,808	4.25%	663,226	3.77%	875,034	3.87%
Independent						
Democratic	2,174,955	43.67%	8,180,126	46.44%	10,355,081	45.83%
Green	23,372	0.47%	84,557	0.48%	107,929	0.48%
Libertarian	53,823	1.08%	181,155	1.03%	234,978	1.04%
No Party Preference	1,051,481	21.11%	3,934,585	22.34%	4,986,066	22.07%
Other	35,842	0.72%	125,714	0.71%	161,556	0.71%
Peace and Freedom	33,109	0.66%	108,696	0.62%	141,805	0.63%
Republican	1,367,721	27.46%	4,270,488	24.24%	5,638,209	24.95%
Unknown	28,162	0.57%	66,839	0.38%	95,001	0.42%
Total	4,980,273	100.00%	17,615,386	100.00%	22,595,659	100.00%

	VCA Counties (VCA) - 2024 G Election	•	Los Angeles (VCA) - 2024 General Election		
Political Party	Registration Count	Percent	Registration Count	Percent	
American Independent	476,550	4.01%	186,676	3.25%	
Democratic	5,185,411	43.68%	2,994,715	52.13%	
Green	57,335	0.48%	27,222	0.47%	
Libertarian	132,836	1.12%	48,319	0.84%	
No Party Preference	2,631,242	22.17%	1,303,343	22.69%	
Other	74,993	0.63%	50,721	0.88%	
Peace and Freedom	66,627	0.56%	42,069	0.73%	

Republican	3,214,334	27.08%	1,056,154	18.38%
Unknown	30,844	0.26%	35,995	0.63%
Total	11,870,172	100.00%	5,745,214	100.00%

(iii) Ballot rejection rates⁴

Ballot rejection rates by age range

	Non-VCA Counties (Non-VCA) - 2024 General Election			VCA Countie Election	VCA Counties (VCA) - 2024 General Election			State - 2024 General Election		
Age Range	Returned Rejectable Ballots	Ballots Rejected	Rejection Rate	Returned Rejectable Ballots	Ballots Rejected	Rejection Rate	Returned Rejectable Ballots	Ballots Rejected	Rejection Rate	
18-25	320,071	11,194	3.50%	1,096,630	31,449	2.87%	1,416,701	42,643	3.01%	
26-35	443,381	8,337	1.88%	1,523,964	23,138	1.52%	1,967,345	31,475	1.60%	
36-45	474,033	4,899	1.03%	1,600,712	14,088	0.88%	2,074,745	18,987	0.92%	
46-55	452,641	3,366	0.74%	1,601,846	10,141	0.63%	2,054,487	13,507	0.66%	
56-65	532,313	2,688	0.50%	1,822,966	8,402	0.46%	2,355,279	11,090	0.47%	
66+	874,397	3,079	0.35%	2,963,364	10,597	0.36%	3,837,761	13,676	0.36%	
Unknown DOB ⁵	6,004	5,998	99.90%	9,308	9,274	99.63%	15,312	15,272	99.74%	
Total	3,102,839	39,560	1.27%	10,618,790	107,089	1.01%	13,721,630	146,650	1.07%	

	VCA Countie General Ele	es Except LA (V ction	CA) - 2024	Los Angeles (VCA) - 2024 General Election			
Age Range	Returned Rejectable Ballots	Ballots Rejected	Rejection Rate	Returned Rejectable Ballots	Ballots Rejected	Rejection Rate	
18-25	794,943	25,821	3.25%	301,687	5,628	1.87%	
26-35	1,040,421	17,451	1.68%	483,543	5,687	1.18%	
36-45	1,151,010	10,256	0.89%	449,702	3,832	0.85%	
46-55	1,181,644	7,301	0.62%	420,202	2,840	0.68%	
56-65	1,356,023	5,702	0.42%	466,943	2,700	0.58%	
66+	2,213,850	6,982	0.32%	749,514	3,615	0.48%	
Unknown DOB ⁶	9,304	9,271	99.65%	4	3	75.00%	

⁴**Returned rejectable ballots** include all Vote-by-Mail (VBM) ballots, Conditional Voter Registration (CVR) provisional ballots, and regular provisional ballots returned by voters. Other ballot types—such as Vote Center regular ballots and non-provisional same-day CVR ballots—are not subject to rejection, as they are considered counted upon issuance. **Ballots rejected** refers to the number of VBM ballots, same-day CVR provisional ballots, and regular provisional ballots, and regular provisional ballots that were rejected. The **rejection rate** is calculated by dividing the total number of rejected VBM, same-day CVR provisional, and regular provisional ballots by the total number of VBM ballots returned, CVR provisional ballots cast, and regular provisional ballots cast.

⁵ This category represents a very small number of ballots and may result in exaggerated rejection rates due to limited sample size.

⁶ This category represents a very small number of ballots and may result in exaggerated rejection rates due to limited sample size.

 Total
 7,747,195
 82,784
 1.07%
 2,871,595
 24,305
 0.85%

Ballot rejection rates by language

	Non-VCA Cou	Non-VCA Counties (Non-VCA) - 2024			s (VCA) - 2024	General	State - 2024	State - 2024 General Election			
	General Elec	tion		Election							
Language	Returned Rejectable Ballots	Ballots Rejected	Rejection Rate	Returned Rejectable Ballots	Ballots Rejected	Rejection Rate	Returned Rejectable Ballots	Ballots Rejected	Rejection Rate		
Other	7,030	6,023	85.68%	17,785	9,415	52.94%	24,815	15,438	62.21%		
Chinese	24,277	196	0.81%	57,651	574	1.00%	81,928	770	0.94%		
English	2,982,811	32,173	1.08%	10,148,025	93,404	0.92%	13,130,836	125,577	0.96%		
Hindi	769	9	1.17%	2,023	40	1.98%	2,792	49	1.76%		
Japanese	393	5	1.27%	2,944	37	1.26%	3,337	42	1.26%		
Khmer	206	6	2.91%	1,072	12	1.12%	1,278	18	1.41%		
Korean	2,607	24	0.92%	37,537	360	0.96%	40,144	384	0.96%		
Spanish	79,109	1,056	1.33%	276,415	2,553	0.92%	355,524	3,609	1.02%		
Tagalog	1,877	12	0.64%	7,350	61	0.83%	9,227	73	0.79%		
Thai	470	8	1.70%	2,563	40	1.56%	3,033	48	1.58%		
Vietnamese	3,291	49	1.49%	65,425	593	0.91%	68,716	642	0.93%		
Total	3,102,840	39,561	1.27%	10,618,790	107,089	1.01%	13,721,630	146,650	1.07%		

	VCA Countie General Elec	s Except LA (V tion	CA) - 2024	Los Angeles	Los Angeles (VCA) - 2024 General Election			
Language	Returned Rejectable Ballots	Ballots Rejected	Rejection Rate	Returned Rejectable Ballots	Ballots Rejected	Rejection Rate		
Other	13,727	9,348	68.10%	4,058	67	1.65%		
Chinese	34,894	357	1.02%	22,757	217	0.95%		
English	7,462,992	70,588	0.95%	2,685,033	22,816	0.85%		
Hindi	1,767	34	1.92%	256	6	2.34%		
Japanese	1,399	14	1.00%	1,545	23	1.49%		
Khmer	514	7	1.36%	558	5	0.90%		
Korean	16,948	168	0.99%	20,589	192	0.93%		
Spanish	150,025	1,655	1.10%	126,390	898	0.71%		

Total	7,747,195	82,784	1.07%	2,871,595	24,305	0.85%
Vietnamese	59,299	552	0.93%	6,126	41	0.67%
Thai	1,019	18	1.77%	1,544	22	1.42%
Tagalog	4,611	43	0.93%	2,739	18	0.66%

Ballot rejection rates by political party

	Non-VCA Counties (N	Non-VCA) - 2	024 General	VCA Counties (VCA) -	2024 Gener	al Election	State - 2024 General	Election	
	Election								
Political Party	Returned	Ballots	Rejection	Returned Rejectable	Ballots	Rejection	Returned	Ballots	Rejection
	Rejectable Ballots	Rejected	Rate	Ballots	Rejected	Rate	Rejectable Ballots	Rejected	Rate
Other	22,370	6,217	27.79%	68,255	10,047	14.72%	90,625	16,264	17.95%
American	121,417	1,518	1.25%	375,793	3,985	1.06%	497,210	5,503	1.11%
Independent									
Democratic	1,444,712	13,578	0.94%	5,306,249	42,225	0.80%	6,750,961	55,803	0.83%
Green	12,856	217	1.69%	45,157	611	1.35%	58,013	828	1.43%
Libertarian	27,509	466	1.69%	90,391	1,270	1.41%	117,900	1,736	1.47%
No Party Preference	525,726	8,461	1.61%	1,980,233	26,173	1.32%	2,505,959	34,634	1.38%
Peace and Freedom	10,694	244	2.28%	35,390	616	1.74%	46,084	860	1.87%
Republican	925,374	8,581	0.93%	2,688,507	21,497	0.80%	3,613,881	30,078	0.83%
Unknown	12,182	279	2.29%	28,815	665	2.31%	40,997	944	2.30%
Total	3,102,840	39,561	1.27%	10,618,790	107,089	1.01%	13,721,630	146,650	1.07%

	VCA Counties Excep Election	t LA (VCA) -	2024 General	Los Angeles (VCA) - 2024 General Election			
Political Party	Returned	Ballots Rejection		Returned	Ballots	Rejection	
	Rejectable Ballots	Rejected	Rate	Rejectable Ballots	Rejected	Rate	
Other	50,591	9,858	19.49%	17,664	189	1.07%	
American	291,192	3,155	1.08%	84,601	830	0.98%	
Independent							
Democratic	3,639,209	30,026	0.83%	1,667,040	12,199	0.73%	
Green	33,409	466	1.39%	11,748	145	1.23%	
Libertarian	71,224	1,012	1.42%	19,167	258	1.35%	
No Party Preference	1,442,724	19,985	1.39%	537,509	6,188	1.15%	
Peace and Freedom	24,239	458	1.89%	11,151	158	1.42%	

Republican	2,177,085	17,408	0.80%	511,422	4,089	0.80%
Unknown	17,522	416	2.37%	11,293	249	2.20%
Total	7,747,195	82,784	1.07%	2,871,595	24,305	0.85%

(iv) Reasons for ballot rejection⁷

Reasons for Ballot Rejection by age range

		Non-VCA Countie	S	VCA Counties		State	
Age Range	Reasons for Ballot Rejection	Rejected Count	Percent	Rejected Count	Percent	Rejected Count	Percent
18-25	Voter already voted	40	0.38%	339	1.12%	379	0.93%
	Ballot missing from envelope	16	0.15%	69	0.23%	85	0.21%
	Multiple ballots returned in one envelope	0	0.00%	26	0.09%	26	0.06%
	Ballot was not received on time	1,760	16.91%	6,032	19.98%	7,792	19.19%
	Missing or incorrect address on envelope	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	No voter signature	635	6.10%	1,864	6.17%	2,499	6.15%
	Non-matching signature	7,856	75.49%	21,271	70.45%	29,127	71.74%
	No ID provided	100	0.96%	593	1.96%	693	1.71%
	Contact your county for further information	0	0.00%	1	0.00%	1	0.00%
	In review	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	Total	10,407		30,195		40,602	
26-35	Voter already voted	50	0.66%	334	1.52%	384	1.30%
	Ballot missing from envelope	23	0.31%	84	0.38%	107	0.36%
	Multiple ballots returned in one envelope	2	0.03%	19	0.09%	21	0.07%
	Ballot was not received on time	1,829	24.30%	6,455	29.41%	8,284	28.10%
	Missing or incorrect address on envelope	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	No voter signature	635	8.44%	1,605	7.31%	2,240	7.60%
	Non-matching signature	4,906	65.18%	13,303	60.61%	18,209	61.77%
	No ID provided	81	1.08%	150	0.68%	231	0.78%
	Contact your county for further information	1	0.01%	0	0.00%	1	0.00%
	In review	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	Total	7,527		21,950		29,477	

36-45 Voter already voted 26	0.60% 284	2.14% 310	1.77%
------------------------------	-----------	-----------	-------

⁷ **Reasons for ballot rejection** - An appropriate reason for rejection, assigned by the county elections official, for all VBM ballots.

Rejected Count - The count of rejected VBM Ballots for the given category and county.

Percent - The number of rejected VBM ballots for the given Specification and county, of the given rejection reason divided by the total number of rejected VBM ballots for the given category and county.

	Ballot missing from envelope	18	0.42%	65	0.49%	83	0.47%
	Multiple ballots returned in one envelope	2	0.05%	28	0.21%	30	0.17%
	Ballot was not received on time	1,310	30.33%	4,834	36.51%	6,144	34.99%
	Missing or incorrect address on envelope	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	No voter signature	532	12.32%	1,326	10.01%	1,858	10.58%
	Non-matching signature	2,397	55.50%	6,609	49.91%	9,006	51.28%
	No ID provided	34	0.79%	95	0.72%	129	0.73%
	Contact your county for further information	0	0.00%	1	0.01%	1	0.01%
	In review	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	Total	4,319		13,242		17,561	
46-55	Voter already voted	25	0.83%	206	2.20%	231	1.87%
	Ballot missing from envelope	11	0.37%	85	0.91%	96	0.78%
	Multiple ballots returned in one envelope	5	0.17%	30	0.32%	35	0.28%
	Ballot was not received on time	960	31.91%	3,394	36.22%	4,354	35.17%
	Missing or incorrect address on envelope	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	No voter signature	540	17.95%	1,171	12.50%	1,711	13.82%
	Non-matching signature	1,445	48.04%	4,408	47.04%	5,853	47.28%
	No ID provided	22	0.73%	77	0.82%	99	0.80%
	Contact your county for further information	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	In review	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	Total	3,008		9,371		12,379	
6-65	Voter already voted	20	0.85%	262	3.43%	282	2.82%
	Ballot missing from envelope	20	0.85%	120	1.57%	140	1.40%
	Multiple ballots returned in one envelope	9	0.38%	48	0.63%	57	0.57%
	Ballot was not received on time	673	28.63%	2,516	32.91%	3,189	31.90%
	Missing or incorrect address on envelope	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	No voter signature	542	23.05%	1,429	18.69%	1,971	19.72%
	Non-matching signature	1,055	44.87%	3,150	41.20%	4,205	42.07%
	No ID provided	32	1.36%	119	1.56%	151	1.51%
	Contact your county for further information	0	0.00%	1	0.01%	1	0.01%
	In review	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	Total	2,351		7,645		9,996	

66+	Voter already voted	26	0.95%	376	3.87%	402	3.22%
	Ballot missing from envelope	59	2.15%	307	3.16%	366	2.94%
	Multiple ballots returned in one envelope	16	0.58%	101	1.04%	117	0.94%
	Ballot was not received on time	730	26.56%	2,533	26.06%	3,263	26.17%
	Missing or incorrect address on envelope	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	No voter signature	769	27.97%	2,308	23.74%	3,077	24.68%
	Non-matching signature	1,089	39.61%	3,893	40.05%	4,982	39.95%
	No ID provided	60	2.18%	202	2.08%	262	2.10%
	Contact your county for further information	0	0.00%	1	0.01%	1	0.01%
	In review	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	Total	2,749		9,721		12,470	
Unknown	Voter already voted	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
DOB	Ballot missing from envelope	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	Multiple ballots returned in one envelope	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	Ballot was not received on time	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	Missing or incorrect address on envelope	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	No voter signature	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	Non-matching signature	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	No ID provided	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	Contact your county for further information	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	In review	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	Total	0		0		0	

Reasons for ballot rejection by age range

		VCA counties exc County	luding LA	LA County		
Age Range	Reasons for Ballot Rejection	Rejected Count	Percent	Rejected Count	Percent	
18-25	Voter already voted	131	0.52%	208	4.00%	
	Ballot missing from envelope	35	0.14%	34	0.65%	
	Multiple ballots returned in one envelope	6	0.02%	20	0.39%	
	Ballot was not received on time	4,375	17.50%	1,657	31.90%	
	Missing or incorrect address on envelope	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	
	No voter signature	1,250	5.00%	614	11.82%	

	Non-matching signature	18,816	75.26%	2,455	47.27%
	No ID provided	388	1.55%	205	3.95%
	Contact your county for further information	0	0.00%	1	0.02%
	In review	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	Total	25,001		5,194	
26-35	Voter already voted	85	0.50%	249	4.88%
	Ballot missing from envelope	41	0.24%	43	0.84%
	Multiple ballots returned in one envelope	4	0.02%	15	0.29%
	Ballot was not received on time	4,440	26.35%	2,015	39.49%
	Missing or incorrect address on envelope	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	No voter signature	988	5.86%	617	12.09%
	Non-matching signature	11,161	66.25%	2,142	41.98%
	No ID provided	128	0.76%	22	0.43%
	Contact your county for further information	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	In review	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	Total	16,847		5,103	
		-			
36-45	Voter already voted	66	0.67%	218	6.52%
	Ballot missing from envelope	41	0.41%	24	0.72%
	Multiple ballots returned in one envelope	6	0.06%	22	0.66%
	Ballot was not received on time	3,306	33.41%	1,528	45.67%
	Missing or incorrect address on envelope	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	No voter signature	898	9.07%	428	12.79%
	Non-matching signature	5,493	55.51%	1,116	33.35%
	No ID provided	85	0.86%	10	0.30%
	Contact your county for further information	1	0.01%	0	0.00%
	In review	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	Total	9,896		3,346	
46-55	Voter already voted	42	0.60%	164	6.90%
	Ballot missing from envelope	39	0.56%	46	1.94%
	Multiple ballots returned in one envelope	5	0.07%	25	1.05%
	Ballot was not received on time	2,386	34.11%	1,008	42.42%
	Missing or incorrect address on envelope	0	0.00%	0	0.00%

	No voter signature	807	11.54%	364	15.32%
	Non-matching signature	3,654	52.24%	754	31.73%
	No ID provided	62	0.89%	15	0.63%
	Contact your county for further information	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	In review	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	Total	6,995		2,376	
56-65	Voter already voted	54	0.99%	208	9.38%
	Ballot missing from envelope	58	1.07%	62	2.80%
	Multiple ballots returned in one envelope	11	0.20%	37	1.67%
	Ballot was not received on time	1,695	31.23%	821	37.03%
	Missing or incorrect address on envelope	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	No voter signature	962	17.72%	467	21.06%
	Non-matching signature	2,548	46.94%	602	27.15%
	No ID provided	99	1.82%	20	0.90%
	Contact your county for further information	1	0.02%	0	0.00%
	In review	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	Total	5,428		2,217	

66+	Voter already voted	69	1.04%	307	9.93%
	Ballot missing from envelope	156	2.35%	151	4.89%
	Multiple ballots returned in one envelope	24	0.36%	77	2.49%
	Ballot was not received on time	1,712	25.82%	821	26.56%
	Missing or incorrect address on envelope	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	No voter signature	1,526	23.02%	782	25.30%
	Non-matching signature	2,995	45.17%	898	29.05%
	No ID provided	147	2.22%	55	1.78%
	Contact your county for further information	1	0.02%	0	0.00%
	In review	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	Total	6,630		3,091	
Unknown	Voter already voted	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
DOB	Ballot missing from envelope	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	Multiple ballots returned in one envelope	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	Ballot was not received on time	0	0.00%	0	0.00%

May	2025
-----	------

Non-matching signature No ID provided	0	0.00% 0.00%	0	0.00% 0.00%
Contact your county for further information	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
In review	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
Total	0		0	

Reasons for ballot rejection by language⁸

		Non-VCA Counties		VCA Counties		State		
Language	Reasons for Ballot Rejection	Rejected Count	Percent	Rejected Count	Percent	Rejected Count	Percent	
	Voter already voted	3	1.74%	24	4.50%	27	3.83%	
	Ballot missing from envelope	2	1.16%	2	0.38%	4	0.57%	
	Multiple ballots returned in one envelope	0	0.00%	4	0.75%	4	0.57%	
	Ballot was not received on time	33	19.19%	71	13.32%	104	14.75%	
	Missing or incorrect address on envelope	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	
Chinese	No voter signature	28	16.28%	84	15.76%	112	15.89%	
	Non-matching signature	105	61.05%	345	64.73%	450	63.83%	
	No ID provided	1	0.58%	3	0.56%	4	0.57%	
	Contact your county for further information	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	
	In review	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	
	Total	172		533		705		
English	Voter already voted	184	0.63%	1,670	1.90%	1,854	1.58%	
	Ballot missing from envelope	142	0.49%	660	0.75%	802	0.68%	
	Multiple ballots returned in one envelope	33	0.11%	211	0.24%	244	0.21%	
	Ballot was not received on time	7,048	24.18%	25,040	28.45%	32,088	27.38%	
	Missing or incorrect address on envelope	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	
	No voter signature	3,389	11.63%	9,014	10.24%	12,403	10.59%	
	Non-matching signature	18,038	61.88%	50,288	57.13%	68,326	58.31%	
	No ID provided	315	1.08%	1,137	1.29%	1,452	1.24%	
	Contact your county for further information	1	0.00%	4	0.00%	5	0.00%	
	In review	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	
	Total	29,150		88,024		117,174		
Hindi	Voter already voted	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	
	Ballot missing from envelope	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	
	Multiple ballots returned in one envelope	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	
	Ballot was not received on time	2	33.33%	8	21.62%	10	23.26%	

⁸ "Other" Language refers to a missing language specification or a language specification outside the standardized language preferences. In this table it identifies individuals that cast provisional ballots that were rejected due to the absence of registration, which accounts for the high rejection rates and lack of language data in this category.

	Missing or incorrect address on envelope	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	No voter signature	0	0.00%	6	16.22%	6	13.95%
	Non-matching signature	4	66.67%	22	59.46%	26	60.47%
	No ID provided	0	0.00%	1	2.70%	1	2.33%
	Contact your county for further information	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	In review	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	Total	6		37		43	
Japanese	Voter already voted	0	0.00%	1	2.78%	1	2.44%
	Ballot missing from envelope	0	0.00%	3	8.33%	3	7.32%
	Multiple ballots returned in one envelope	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	Ballot was not received on time	1	20.00%	11	30.56%	12	29.27%
	Missing or incorrect address on envelope	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	No voter signature	2	40.00%	1	2.78%	3	7.32%
	Non-matching signature	2	40.00%	19	52.78%	21	51.22%
	No ID provided	0	0.00%	1	2.78%	1	2.44%
	Contact your county for further information	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	In review	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	Total	5		36		41	
Khmer	Voter already voted	0	0.00%	1	9.09%	1	5.88%
	Ballot missing from envelope	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	Multiple ballots returned in one envelope	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	Ballot was not received on time	1	16.67%	0	0.00%	1	5.88%
	Missing or incorrect address on envelope	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	No voter signature	1	16.67%	7	63.64%	8	47.06%
	Non-matching signature	4	66.67%	3	27.27%	7	41.18%
	No ID provided	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	Contact your county for further information	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	In review	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	Total	6		11		17	

Korean	Voter already voted	0	0.00%	15	4.60%	15	4.32%
	Ballot missing from envelope	0	0.00%	5	1.53%	5	1.44%
	Multiple ballots returned in one envelope	0	0.00%	1	0.31%	1	0.29%
	Ballot was not received on time	1	4.76%	58	17.79%	59	17.00%
	Missing or incorrect address on envelope	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	No voter signature	4	19.05%	53	16.26%	57	16.43%
	Non-matching signature	16	76.19%	189	57.98%	205	59.08%
	No ID provided	0	0.00%	5	1.53%	5	1.44%
	Contact your county for further information	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	In review	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	Total	21		326		347	
Other	Voter already voted	0	0.00%	7	5.19%	7	4.35%
	Ballot missing from envelope	0	0.00%	3	2.22%	3	1.86%
	Multiple ballots returned in one envelope	0	0.00%	4	2.96%	4	2.48%
	Ballot was not received on time	4	15.38%	24	17.78%	28	17.39%
	Missing or incorrect address on envelope	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	No voter signature	5	19.23%	28	20.74%	33	20.50%
	Non-matching signature	17	65.38%	66	48.89%	83	51.55%
	No ID provided	0	0.00%	3	2.22%	3	1.86%
	Contact your county for further information	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	In review	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	Total	26		135		161	
Spanish	Voter already voted	0	0.00%	76	3.21%	76	2.32%
	Ballot missing from envelope	3	0.33%	49	2.07%	52	1.59%
	Multiple ballots returned in one envelope	1	0.11%	30	1.27%	31	0.95%
	Ballot was not received on time	161	17.71%	481	20.30%	642	19.59%
	Missing or incorrect address on envelope	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	No voter signature	197	21.67%	429	18.11%	626	19.10%
	Non-matching signature	534	58.75%	1,247	52.64%	1,781	54.33%
	No ID provided	13	1.43%	57	2.41%	70	2.14%
	Contact your county for further information	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	0	0.00%

	In review	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	Total	909		2,369		3,278	
Tagalog	Voter already voted	0	0.00%	2	3.33%	2	2.78%
	Ballot missing from envelope	0	0.00%	3	5.00%	3	4.17%
	Multiple ballots returned in one envelope	0	0.00%	1	1.67%	1	1.39%
	Ballot was not received on time	6	50.00%	10	16.67%	16	22.22%
	Missing or incorrect address on envelope	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	No voter signature	5	41.67%	13	21.67%	18	25.00%
	Non-matching signature	1	8.33%	31	51.67%	32	44.44%
	No ID provided	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	Contact your county for further information	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	In review	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	Total	12		60		72	
Thai	Voter already voted	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	Ballot missing from envelope	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	Multiple ballots returned in one envelope	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	Ballot was not received on time	2	25.00%	10	27.78%	12	27.27%
	Missing or incorrect address on envelope	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	No voter signature	1	12.50%	5	13.89%	6	13.64%
	Non-matching signature	5	62.50%	20	55.56%	25	56.82%
	No ID provided	0	0.00%	1	2.78%	1	2.27%
	Contact your county for further information	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	In review	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	Total	8		36		44	
Vietnamese	Voter already voted	0	0.00%	5	0.90%	5	0.83%
	Ballot missing from envelope	0	0.00%	5	0.90%	5	0.83%
	Multiple ballots returned in one envelope	0	0.00%	1	0.18%	1	0.17%
	Ballot was not received on time	3	6.52%	51	9.16%	54	8.96%
	Missing or incorrect address on envelope	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	0	0.00%

No voter signature	21	45.65%	63	11.31%	84	13.93%
Non-matching signature	22	47.83%	404	72.53%	426	70.65%
No ID provided	0	0.00%	28	5.03%	28	4.64%
Contact your county for further information	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
In review	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
Total	46		557		603	

		VCA counties excl County	uding LA	LA County		
Language	Reasons for Ballot Rejection	Rejected Count Percent		Rejected Count	Percent	
Chinese	Voter already voted	2	0.59%	22	11.28%	
	Ballot missing from envelope	1	0.30%	1	0.51%	
	Multiple ballots returned in one envelope	0	0.00%	4	2.05%	
	Ballot was not received on time	50	14.79%	21	10.77%	
	Missing or incorrect address on envelope	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	
	No voter signature	47	13.91%	37	18.97%	
	Non-matching signature	235	69.53%	110	56.41%	
	No ID provided	3	0.89%	0	0.00%	
	Contact your county for further information	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	
	In review	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	
	Total	338		195		
English	Voter already voted	436	0.64%	1,234	6.16%	
	Ballot missing from envelope	354	0.52%	306	1.53%	
	Multiple ballots returned in one envelope	55	0.08%	156	0.78%	
	Ballot was not received on time	17,456	25.67%	7,584	37.87%	
	Missing or incorrect address on envelope	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	
	No voter signature	6,046	8.89%	2,968	14.82%	
	Non-matching signature	42,823	62.98%	7,465	37.27%	
	No ID provided	824	1.21%	313	1.56%	
	Contact your county for further information	3	0.00%	1	0.00%	
	In review	0	0.00%	0	0.00%	

1500 11th Street | Sacramento, CA 95814 | **Tel** 916.653.7244 | **Fax** 916.653.4620 | <u>www.sos.ca.gov</u>

May	2025
-----	------

	Total	67,997		20,027	
	-				
Hindi	Voter already voted	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	Ballot missing from envelope	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	Multiple ballots returned in one envelope	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	Ballot was not received on time	7	21.88%	1	20.00%
	Missing or incorrect address on envelope	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	No voter signature	5	15.63%	1	20.00%
	Non-matching signature	19	59.38%	3	60.00%
	No ID provided	1	3.13%	0	0.00%
	Contact your county for further information	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	In review	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	Total	32		5	
Japanese	Voter already voted	0	0.00%	1	4.55%
	Ballot missing from envelope	1	7.14%	2	9.09%
	Multiple ballots returned in one envelope	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	Ballot was not received on time	3	21.43%	8	36.36%
	Missing or incorrect address on envelope	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	No voter signature	0	0.00%	1	4.55%
	Non-matching signature	10	71.43%	9	40.91%
	No ID provided	0	0.00%	1	4.55%
	Contact your county for further information	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	In review	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	Total	14		22	
Khmer	Voter already voted	0	0.00%	1	20.00%
	Ballot missing from envelope	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	Multiple ballots returned in one envelope	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	Ballot was not received on time	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	Missing or incorrect address on envelope	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	No voter signature	5	83.33%	2	40.00%
	Non-matching signature	1	16.67%	2	40.00%

	No ID provided	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	Contact your county for further information	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	In review	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	Total	6		5	
Korean	Voter already voted	0	0.00%	15	9.26%
	Ballot missing from envelope	0	0.00%	5	3.09%
	Multiple ballots returned in one envelope	0	0.00%	1	0.62%
	Ballot was not received on time	16	9.76%	42	25.93%
	Missing or incorrect address on envelope	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	No voter signature	21	12.80%	32	19.75%
	Non-matching signature	123	75.00%	66	40.74%
	No ID provided	4	2.44%	1	0.62%
	Contact your county for further information	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	In review	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	Total	164		162	
Other	Voter already voted	1	1.28%	6	10.53%
	Ballot missing from envelope	0	0.00%	3	5.26%
	Multiple ballots returned in one envelope	1	1.28%	3	5.26%
	Ballot was not received on time	10	12.82%	14	24.56%
	Missing or incorrect address on envelope	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	No voter signature	15	19.23%	13	22.81%
	Non-matching signature	49	62.82%	17	29.82%
	No ID provided	2	2.56%	1	1.75%
	Contact your county for further information	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	In review	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	Total	78		57	
Spanish	Voter already voted	5	0.31%	71	9.13%
	Ballot missing from envelope	10	0.63%	39	5.01%
	Multiple ballots returned in one envelope	0	0.00%	30	3.86%
	Ballot was not received on time	320	20.11%	161	20.69%
	Missing or incorrect address on envelope	0	0.00%	0	0.00%

	No voter signature	225	14.14%	204	26.22%
	Non-matching signature	985	61.91%	262	33.68%
	No ID provided	46	2.89%	11	1.41%
	Contact your county for further information	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	In review	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	Total	1,591		778	
Tagalog	Voter already voted	1	2.38%	1	5.56%
	Ballot missing from envelope	1	2.38%	2	11.119
	Multiple ballots returned in one envelope	0	0.00%	1	5.56%
	Ballot was not received on time	7	16.67%	3	16.67%
	Missing or incorrect address on envelope	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
	No voter signature	8	19.05%	5	27.789
	Non-matching signature	25	59.52%	6	33.339
	No ID provided	0	0.00%	0	0.00
	Contact your county for further information	0	0.00%	0	0.00
	In review	0	0.00%	0	0.00
	Total	42		18	
Thai	Voter already voted	0	0.00%	0	0.009
	Ballot missing from envelope	0	0.00%	0	0.00
	Multiple ballots returned in one envelope	0	0.00%	0	0.00
	Ballot was not received on time	3	16.67%	7	38.89
	Missing or incorrect address on envelope	0	0.00%	0	0.00
	No voter signature	3	16.67%	2	11.11
	Non-matching signature	11	61.11%	9	50.00
	No ID provided	1	5.56%	0	0.00
	Contact your county for further information	0	0.00%	0	0.00
	In review	0	0.00%	0	0.00
	Total	18		18	
/ietnamese	e Voter already voted	2	0.39%	3	7.509
	Ballot missing from envelope	3	0.58%	2	5.00
	Multiple ballots returned in one envelope	0	0.00%	1	2.50

May 2	2025
-------	------

Total	517	0.0070	40	0.0070
In review	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
Contact your county for further information	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
No ID provided	28	5.42%	0	0.00%
Non-matching signature	386	74.66%	18	45.00%
No voter signature	56	10.83%	7	17.50%
Missing or incorrect address on envelope	0	0.00%	0	0.00%
Ballot was not received on time	42	8.12%	9	22.50%

(v) Provisional ballot use⁹

Provisional ballot uses by age range

	Non-VCA Counties (Non-VCA) - 2024 General Election		VCA Countie Election	VCA Counties (VCA) - 2024 General Election			State - 2024 General Election		
Age Range	Turnout Number	Counted Provisional	Share	Turnout Number	Counted Provisional	Share	Turnout Number	Counted Provisional	Share
18-25	365,276	11,215	3.07%	1,331,240	3,128	0.23%	1,696,516	14,343	0.85%
26-35	518,949	13,278	2.56%	1,913,767	2,619	0.14%	2,432,716	15,897	0.65%
36-45	560,855	7,769	1.39%	1,998,285	1,834	0.09%	2,559,140	9,603	0.38%
46-55	525,365	4,797	0.91%	1,959,119	1,164	0.06%	2,484,484	5,961	0.24%
56-65	599,537	4,083	0.68%	2,161,905	861	0.04%	2,761,442	4,944	0.18%
66+	935,749	3,442	0.37%	3,266,319	769	0.02%	4,202,068	4,211	0.10%
Unknown DOB ¹⁰	6	0	0.00%	34	4	11.76%	40	4	10.00%
Total	3,505,737	44,584	1.27%	12,630,669	10,379	0.08%	16,136,406	54,963	0.34%

	VCA Counties Except LA (VCA) - 2024 General Election			Los Angeles (VCA) - 2024 General Election		
Age Range	Turnout Number	Counted Provisional	Share	Turnout Number	Counted Provisional	Share
18-25	920,336	2,795	0.30%	410,904	333	0.08%
26-35	1,245,606	2,418	0.19%	668,161	201	0.03%
36-45	1,371,775	1,708	0.12%	626,510	126	0.02%
46-55	1,378,903	1,078	0.08%	580,216	86	0.01%
56-65	1,539,430	757	0.05%	622,475	104	0.02%
66+	2,373,219	684	0.03%	893,100	85	0.01%
Unknown DOB ¹¹	33	4	12.12%	1	0	0.00%

⁹ **Turnout Number** - Number of accepted votes in the election (total counted Vote By Mail (VBM) ballots, Regular Vote Center ballots, Provisional ballots, CVR Provisional Ballots, and non-Provisional "Instant" CVR ballots).

Counted Provisional - Count of all regular provisional ballots (not including same day Conditional Voter Registration (CVR) provisional ballots) cast by the voter and counted by the county. **Share** - Share of voters who cast an accepted Provisional ballot out of voter turnout.

¹⁰ This category represents a very small number of ballots and may result in exaggerated rejection rates due to limited sample size.

¹¹ This category represents a very small number of ballots and may result in exaggerated rejection rates due to limited sample size.

Total 8,829,302 9,444	0.11%	3,801,367	935	0.02%
-----------------------	-------	-----------	-----	-------

Provisional ballot uses by language

	Non-VCA Counties (Non-VCA) - 2024 General Election			VCA Countie	es (VCA) - 2024 (General	State - 2024 0	State - 2024 General Election		
				Election	Election					
Language	Turnout Number	Counted Provisional	Share	Turnout Number	Counted Provisional	Share	Turnout Number	Counted Provisional	Share	
Chinese	25,274	474	1.88%	65,305	31	0.05%	90,579	505	0.56%	
English	3,380,213	41,680	1.23%	12,083,735	10,037	0.08%	15,463,948	51,717	0.33%	
Hindi	836	7	0.84%	2,313	1	0.04%	3,149	8	0.25%	
Japanese	417	5	1.20%	3,284	0	0.00%	3,701	5	0.14%	
Khmer	228	3	1.32%	1,266	1	0.08%	1,494	4	0.27%	
Korean	2,748	23	0.84%	40,543	6	0.01%	43,291	29	0.07%	
Other	1,127	57	5.06%	9,749	10	0.10%	10,876	67	0.62%	
Spanish	88,852	2,224	2.50%	340,360	241	0.07%	429,212	2,465	0.57%	
Tagalog	2,037	45	2.21%	8,204	6	0.07%	10,241	51	0.50%	
Thai	503	7	1.39%	2,902	2	0.07%	3,405	9	0.26%	
Vietnamese	3,502	59	1.68%	73,008	44	0.06%	76,510	103	0.13%	
Total	3,505,737	44,584	1.27%	12,630,669	10,379	0.08%	16,136,406	54,963	0.34%	

	VCA Count General Ele	ies Except LA (V ection	CA) - 2024	Los Angeles	Los Angeles (VCA) - 2024 General Election				
Language	Turnout Number	Counted Provisional	Share	Turnout Number	Counted Provisional	Share			
Chinese	37,752	23	0.06%	27,553	8	0.03%			
English	8,519,661	9,148	0.11%	3,564,074	889	0.02%			
Hindi	1,974	1	0.05%	339	0	0.00%			
Japanese	1,491	0	0.00%	1,793	0	0.00%			
Khmer	578	1	0.17%	688	0	0.00%			
Korean	18,093	3	0.02%	22,450	3	0.01%			
Other	4,895	10	0.20%	4,854	0	0.00%			
Spanish	173,261	211	0.12%	167,099	30	0.02%			

Total	8,829,302	9,444	0.11%	3,801,367	935	0.02%
Vietnamese	65,486	41	0.06%	7,522	3	0.04%
Thai	1,098	2	0.18%	1,804	0	0.00%
Tagalog	5,013	4	0.08%	3,191	2	0.06%

Provisional ballot uses by political party

	Non-VCA Cou General Elec					State - 2024 (General Election		
Political Party	Turnout Number	Counted Provisional	Share	Turnout Number	Counted Provisional	Share	Turnout Number	Counted Provisional	Share
American Independent	139,377	1,781	1.28%	454,278	421	0.09%	593,655	2,202	0.37%
Democratic	1,592,316	20,082	1.26%	6,089,860	3,842	0.06%	7,682,176	23,924	0.31%
Green	14,746	316	2.14%	54,043	111	0.21%	68,789	427	0.62%
Libertarian	32,895	561	1.71%	114,512	151	0.13%	147,407	712	0.48%
No Party Preference	599,280	11,655	1.94%	2,368,638	2,955	0.12%	2,967,918	14,610	0.49%
Other	19,475	256	1.31%	73,932	124	0.17%	93,407	380	0.41%
Peace and Freedom	12,749	341	2.67%	45,262	79	0.17%	58,011	420	0.72%
Republican	1,081,016	8,943	0.83%	3,394,278	2,580	0.08%	4,475,294	11,523	0.26%
Unknown	13,883	649	4.67%	35,866	116	0.32%	49,749	765	1.54%
Total	3,505,737	44,584	1.27%	12,630,669	10,379	0.08%	16,136,406	54,963	0.34%

	VCA Countie General Elec	s Except LA (VC) tion	A) - 2024	Los Angeles	Los Angeles (VCA) - 2024 General Election			
Political Party	Turnout Number	Counted Provisional	Share	Turnout Number	Counted Provisional	Share		
American Independent	337,071	397	0.12%	117,207	24	0.02%		
Democratic	3,996,749	3,493	0.09%	2,093,111	349	0.02%		
Green	38,294	109	0.28%	15,749	2	0.01%		
Libertarian	86,430	143	0.17%	28,082	8	0.03%		
No Party Preference	1,654,748	2,646	0.16%	713,890	309	0.04%		

Other	48,833	121	0.25%	25,099	3	0.01%
Peace and Freedom	29,276	72	0.25%	15,986	7	0.04%
Republican	2,618,363	2,353	0.09%	775,915	227	0.03%
Unknown	19,538	110	0.56%	16,328	6	0.04%
Total	8,829,302	9,444	0.11%	3,801,367	935	0.02%

(vi) Accessible vote by mail ballot use¹²

Accessible vote by mail ballot use by age range

	Non-VCA Cour General Electi	nties (Non-VCA) on	- 2024	VCA Counties	(VCA) - 2024 Ge	neral Election	State - 2024 General Election		
Age Range	Turnout Number	Accessible VBM Ballot Accepted	Share of Turnout	Turnout Number	Accessible VBM Ballot Accepted	Share of Turnout	Turnout Number	Accessible VBM Ballot Accepted	Share of Turnout
18-25	365,276	245	0.07%	1,331,240	892	0.07%	1,696,516	1,137	0.07%
26-35	518,949	289	0.06%	1,913,767	796	0.04%	2,432,716	1,085	0.04%
36-45	560,855	272	0.05%	1,998,285	636	0.03%	2,559,140	908	0.04%
46-55	525,365	197	0.04%	1,959,119	682	0.03%	2,484,484	879	0.04%
56-65	599,537	261	0.04%	2,161,905	868	0.04%	2,761,442	1,129	0.04%
66+	935,749	385	0.04%	3,266,319	1,423	0.04%	4,202,068	1,808	0.04%
Unknown DOB	6	0	0.00%	34	0	0.00%	40	0	0.00%
Total	3,505,737	1,649	0.05%	12,630,669	5,297	0.04%	16,136,406	6,946	0.04%

	VCA Counties General Electi	Except LA (VCA) on) - 2024	Los Angeles (VCA) - 2024 General Elect		
Age Range	Turnout Number	Accessible VBM Ballot Accepted	VBM Ballot Turnout		Accessible VBM Ballot Accepted	Share of Turnout
18-25	920,336	723	0.08%	410,904	169	0.04%
26-35	1,245,606	605	0.05%	668,161	191	0.03%
36-45	1,371,775	496	0.04%	626,510	140	0.02%
46-55	1,378,903	577	0.04%	580,216	105	0.02%
56-65	1,539,430	750	0.05%	622,475	118	0.02%
66+	2,373,219	1,259	0.05%	893,100	164	0.02%
Unknown DOB	33	0	0.00%	1	0	0.00%

¹² **Turnout Number** - Number of accepted votes in the election (total counted Vote By Mail (VBM) ballots, Regular Vote Center ballots, Provisional ballots, CVR Provisional Ballots, and non-Provisional "Instant" CVR ballots).

Accessible VBM Ballot Accepted - Defined as Remote Accessible VBM ballots categorized by the county as being returned by the voter and accepted by the county. Share of Turnout - Share of accepted RAVBM ballots out of voter turnout.
Total 8,829,302 4,410	0.05%	3,801,367	887	0.02%
-----------------------	-------	-----------	-----	-------

Accessible vote by mail ballot use by language

		Non-VCA Counties (Non-VCA) - 2024 General Election			VCA Counties (VCA) - 2024 General Election			State - 2024 General Election		
Language	Turnout Number	Accessible VBM Ballot Accepted	Share of Turnout	Turnout Number	Accessible VBM Ballot Accepted	Share of Turnout	Turnout Number	Accessible VBM Ballot Accepted	Share of Turnout	
Chinese	25,274	2	0.01%	65,305	8	0.01%	90,579	10	0.01%	
English	3,380,213	1,625	0.05%	12,083,735	4,567	0.04%	15,463,948	6,192	0.04%	
Hindi	836	1	0.12%	2,313	1	0.04%	3,149	2	0.06%	
Japanese	417	0	0.00%	3,284	0	0.00%	3,701	0	0.00%	
Khmer	228	0	0.00%	1,266	0	0.00%	1,494	0	0.00%	
Korean	2,748	0	0.00%	40,543	8	0.02%	43,291	8	0.02%	
Other	1,127	0	0.00%	9,749	4	0.04%	10,876	4	0.04%	
Spanish	88,852	19	0.02%	340,360	87	0.03%	429,212	106	0.02%	
Tagalog	2,037	2	0.10%	8,204	2	0.02%	10,241	4	0.04%	
Thai	503	0	0.00%	2,902	2	0.07%	3,405	2	0.06%	
Vietnamese	3,502	0	0.00%	73,008	618	0.85%	76,510	618	0.81%	
Total	3,505,737	1,649	0.05%	12,630,669	5,297	0.04%	16,136,406	6,946	0.04%	

	VCA Counties General Electi	Except LA (VCA) on) - 2024	Los Angeles (VCA) - 2024 General Election			
Language	Turnout Number	Accessible VBM Ballot Accepted	Share of Turnout	Turnout Number	Accessible VBM Ballot Accepted	Share of Turnout	
Chinese	37,752	8	0.02%	27,553	0	0.00%	
English	8,519,661	3,698	0.04%	3,564,074	869	0.02%	
Hindi	1,974	1	0.05%	339	0	0.00%	
Japanese	1,491	0	0.00%	1,793	0	0.00%	
Khmer	578	0	0.00%	688	0	0.00%	
Korean	18,093	5	0.03%	22,450	3	0.01%	
Other	4,895	2	0.04%	4,854	2	0.04%	

Spanish	173,261	76	0.04%	167,099	11	0.01%
Tagalog	5,013	2	0.04%	3,191	0	0.00%
Thai	1,098	0	0.00%	1,804	2	0.11%
Vietnamese	65,486	618	0.94%	7,522	0	0.00%
Total	8,829,302	4,410	0.05%	3,801,367	887	0.02%

Accessible vote by mail ballot uses by political party

	Non-VCA Counties (Non-VCA) - 2024 General Election			VCA Counties	VCA Counties (VCA) - 2024 General Election			State - 2024 General Election		
Political Party	Turnout Number	Accessible VBM Ballot Accepted	Share of Turnout	Turnout Number	Accessible VBM Ballot Accepted	Share of Turnout	Turnout Number	Accessible VBM Ballot Accepted	Share of Turnout	
American Independent	139,377	53	0.04%	454,278	154	0.03%	593,655	207	0.03%	
Democratic	1,592,316	935	0.06%	6,089,860	2,614	0.04%	7,682,176	3,549	0.05%	
Green	14,746	10	0.07%	54,043	21	0.04%	68,789	31	0.05%	
Libertarian	32,895	13	0.04%	114,512	44	0.04%	147,407	57	0.04%	
No Party Preference	599,280	311	0.05%	2,368,638	1,057	0.04%	2,967,918	1,368	0.05%	
Other	19,475	10	0.05%	73,932	25	0.03%	93,407	35	0.04%	
Peace and Freedom	12,749	7	0.05%	45,262	29	0.06%	58,011	36	0.06%	
Republican	1,081,016	285	0.03%	3,394,278	1,342	0.04%	4,475,294	1,627	0.04%	
Unknown	13,883	25	0.18%	35,866	11	0.03%	49,749	36	0.07%	
Total	3,505,737	1,649	0.05%	12,630,669	5,297	0.04%	16,136,406	6,946	0.04%	

	VCA Counties General Electi	Except LA (VCA) on) - 2024	Los Angeles (VCA) - 2024 General Election			
Political Party	Turnout Number	Accessible VBM Ballot Accepted	Share of Turnout	Turnout Number	Accessible VBM Ballot Accepted	Share of Turnout	
American Independent	337,071	129	0.04%	117,207	25	0.02%	
Democratic	3,996,749	2,029	0.05%	2,093,111	585	0.03%	
Green	38,294	19	0.05%	15,749	2	0.01%	
Libertarian	86,430	39	0.05%	28,082	5	0.02%	

May 2025

May	2025
-----	------

Total	8,829,302	4,410	0.05%	3,801,367	887	0.02%
Unknown	19,538	5	0.03%	16,328	6	0.04%
Republican	2,618,363	1,256	0.05%	775,915	86	0.01%
Peace and Freedom	29,276	25	0.09%	15,986	4	0.03%
Other	48,833	19	0.04%	25,099	6	0.02%
No Party Preference	1,654,748	889	0.05%	713,890	168	0.02%

(vii) The number of votes cast at each vote center / Polling Place¹³

The number of votes cast at each vote center / Polling Place by age range

Non-VCA Counties (Non-VCA) - 2024 General Election				VCA Counties (VCA) - 2024 General Election			State - 2024 General Election		
Age Range	Turnout Number	In-Person Ballots	Share of Turnout	Turnout Number	In-Person Ballots	Share of Turnout	Turnout Number	In-Person Ballots	Share of Turnout
18-25	365,276	166,390	45.55%	1,331,240	600,966	45.14%	1,696,516	767,356	45.23%
26-35	518,949	228,611	44.05%	1,913,767	803,384	41.98%	2,432,716	1,031,995	42.42%
36-45	560,855	240,039	42.80%	1,998,285	786,035	39.34%	2,559,140	1,026,074	40.09%
46-55	525,365	202,436	38.53%	1,959,119	703,929	35.93%	2,484,484	906,365	36.48%
56-65	599,537	197,036	32.86%	2,161,905	681,993	31.55%	2,761,442	879,029	31.83%
66+	935,749	219,769	23.49%	3,266,319	730,511	22.36%	4,202,068	950,280	22.61%
Unknown DOB ¹⁴	6	6	100.00%	34	33	97.06%	40	39	97.50%
Total	3,505,737	1,254,287	35.78%	12,630,669	4,306,851	34.10%	16,136,406	5,561,138	34.46%

	VCA Counties General Electi	Except LA (VCA) on) - 2024	Los Angeles (VCA) - 2024 General Election			
Age Range			Number Ballots Turnout		In-Person Ballots	Share of Turnout	
18-25	920,336	391,289	42.52%	410,904	209,677	51.03%	
26-35	1,245,606	496,398	39.85%	668,161	306,986	45.94%	
36-45	1,371,775	512,625	37.37%	626,510	273,410	43.64%	
46-55	1,378,903	459,028	33.29%	580,216	244,901	42.21%	
56-65	1,539,430	439,531	28.55%	622,475	242,462	38.95%	
66+	2,373,219	475,626	20.04%	893,100	254,885	28.54%	

¹³ **Turnout Number** - Number of accepted votes in the election (total counted Vote By Mail (VBM) ballots, Regular Vote Center ballots, Provisional ballots, CVR Provisional Ballots, and non-Provisional "Instant" CVR ballots).

In-Person Ballots - Number of accepted ballots cast in person; regular vote center, provisional, CVR provisional, non-provisional CVR, Vote by Mail (VBM) ballots that are categorized by the county as being returned by "Vote Center Drop Off" or "Drop Off Location".

Share of Turnout - Share of voters who cast an accepted ballot in person out of voter turnout.

¹⁴ This category represents a very small number of ballots and may result in exaggerated rejection rates due to limited sample size.

Unknown DOB ¹⁵	33	32	96.97%	1	1	100.00%
Total	8,829,302	2,774,529	31.42%	3,801,367	1,532,322	40.31%

The number of votes cast at each vote center / Polling Place by language

	Non-VCA Counties (Non-VCA) - 2024 General Election			VCA Counties (VCA) - 2024 General Election			State - 2024 General Election		
Language	Turnout Number	In-Person Ballots	Share of Turnout	Turnout Number	In-Person Ballots	Share of Turnout	Turnout Number	In-Person Ballots	Share of Turnout
Chinese	25,274	5,956	23.57%	65,305	17,275	26.45%	90,579	23,231	25.65%
English	3,380,213	1,211,325	35.84%	12,083,735	4,124,038	34.13%	15,463,948	5,335,363	34.50%
Hindi	836	225	26.91%	2,313	703	30.39%	3,149	928	29.47%
Japanese	417	103	24.70%	3,284	786	23.93%	3,701	889	24.02%
Khmer	228	71	31.14%	1,266	381	30.09%	1,494	452	30.25%
Korean	2,748	464	16.89%	40,543	6,550	16.16%	43,291	7,014	16.20%
Other	1,127	406	36.02%	9,749	3,223	33.06%	10,876	3,629	33.37%
Spanish	88,852	34,003	38.27%	340,360	130,618	38.38%	429,212	164,621	38.35%
Tagalog	2,037	524	25.72%	8,204	1,841	22.44%	10,241	2,365	23.09%
Thai	503	120	23.86%	2,902	732	25.22%	3,405	852	25.02%
Vietnamese	3,502	1,090	31.13%	73,008	20,704	28.36%	76,510	21,794	28.49%
Total	3,505,737	1,254,287	35.78%	12,630,669	4,306,851	34.10%	16,136,406	5,561,138	34.46%

	VCA Counties General Electi	Except LA (VCA) on) - 2024	Los Angeles (VCA) - 2024 General Election			
Language	Turnout Number			Turnout Number	In-Person Ballots	Share of Turnout	
Chinese	37,752	8,512	22.55%	27,553	8,763	31.80%	
English	8,519,661	2,678,534	31.44%	3,564,074	1,445,504	40.56%	
Hindi	1,974	583	29.53%	339	120	35.40%	
Japanese	1,491	334	22.40%	1,793	452	25.21%	
Khmer	578	166	28.72%	688	215	31.25%	

¹⁵ This category represents a very small number of ballots and may result in exaggerated rejection rates due to limited sample size.

Korean	18,093	2,956	16.34%	22,450	3,594	16.01%
Other	4,895	1,777	36.30%	4,854	1,446	29.79%
Spanish	173,261	62,420	36.03%	167,099	68,198	40.81%
Tagalog	5,013	1,070	21.34%	3,191	771	24.16%
Thai	1,098	233	21.22%	1,804	499	27.66%
Vietnamese	65,486	17,944	27.40%	7,522	2,760	36.69%
Total	8,829,302	2,774,529	31.42%	3,801,367	1,532,322	40.31%

The number of votes cast at each vote center / Polling Place by political party

	Non-VCA Cour General Electi	nties (Non-VCA) on	- 2024	VCA Counties	(VCA) - 2024 Ge	neral Election	State - 2024 General Election		
Political Party	Turnout Number	In-Person Ballots	Share of Turnout	Turnout Number	In-Person Ballots	Share of Turnout	Turnout Number	In-Person Ballots	Share of Turnout
American Independent	139,377	51,196	36.73%	454,278	162,885	35.86%	593,655	214,081	36.06%
Democratic	1,592,316	499,016	31.34%	6,089,860	1,777,871	29.19%	7,682,176	2,276,887	29.64%
Green	14,746	5,782	39.21%	54,043	19,688	36.43%	68,789	25,470	37.03%
Libertarian	32,895	14,032	42.66%	114,512	46,515	40.62%	147,407	60,547	41.07%
No Party Preference	599,280	228,981	38.21%	2,368,638	857,667	36.21%	2,967,918	1,086,648	36.61%
Other	19,475	8,193	42.07%	73,932	32,240	43.61%	93,407	40,433	43.29%
Peace and Freedom	12,749	5,696	44.68%	45,262	19,539	43.17%	58,011	25,235	43.50%
Republican	1,081,016	435,545	40.29%	3,394,278	1,373,168	40.46%	4,475,294	1,808,713	40.42%
Unknown	13,883	5,846	42.11%	35,866	17,278	48.17%	49,749	23,124	46.48%
Total	3,505,737	1,254,287	35.78%	12,630,669	4,306,851	34.10%	16,136,406	5,561,138	34.46%

	VCA Counties General Electi	Except LA (VCA) on) - 2024	Los Angeles (VCA) - 2024 General Election			
Political Party	Turnout Number	In-Person Ballots	Share of Turnout	Turnout Number	In-Person Ballots	Share of Turnout	
American Independent	337,071	111,975	33.22%	117,207	50,910	43.44%	
Democratic	3,996,749	1,038,549	25.98%	2,093,111	739,322	35.32%	
Green	38,294	12,875	33.62%	15,749	6,813	43.26%	
Libertarian	86,430	33,134	38.34%	28,082	13,381	47.65%	

Total	8,829,302	2,774,529	31.42%	3,801,367	1,532,322	40.31%
Unknown	19,538	9,364	47.93%	16,328	7,914	48.47%
Republican	2,618,363	986,855	37.69%	775,915	386,313	49.79%
Peace and Freedom	29,276	11,741	40.10%	15,986	7,798	48.78%
Other	48,833	20,591	42.17%	25,099	11,649	46.41%
No Party Preference	1,654,748	549,445	33.20%	713,890	308,222	43.17%

(viii) The number of ballots returned at ballot drop-off locations¹⁶¹⁷

The number of ballots returned at ballot drop-off locations by age range

	Non-VCA Cour General Electi	nties (Non-VCA) on	- 2024	VCA Counties (VCA) - 2024 General Election			State - 2024 Ge	State - 2024 General Election			
Age Range	Turnout Number	VBM ballots dropped off	Share of Turnout	Turnout Number	VBM ballots dropped off	Share of Turnout	Turnout Number	VBM ballots dropped off	Share of Turnout		
18-25	365,276	172,304	47.17%	1,331,240	630,276	47.35%	1,696,516	802,580	47.31%		
26-35	518,949	264,327	50.94%	1,913,767	1,004,800	52.50%	2,432,716	1,269,127	52.17%		
36-45	560,855	285,916	50.98%	1,998,285	1,053,146	52.70%	2,559,140	1,339,062	52.32%		
46-55	525,365	258,033	49.11%	1,959,119	1,002,803	51.19%	2,484,484	1,260,836	50.75%		
56-65	599,537	275,491	45.95%	2,161,905	1,053,312	48.72%	2,761,442	1,328,803	48.12%		
66+	935,749	384,648	41.11%	3,266,319	1,504,994	46.08%	4,202,068	1,889,642	44.97%		
Unknown DOB	6	0	0.00%	34	2	5.88%	40	2	5.00%		
Total	3,505,737	1,640,719	46.80%	12,630,669	6,249,333	49.48%	16,136,406	7,890,052	48.90%		

	VCA Counties General Electi	Except LA (VCA on) - 2024	Los Angeles (VCA) - 2024 General Election			
Age Range	Turnout Number			Turnout Number	VBM ballots dropped off	Share of Turnout	
18-25	920,336	438,485	47.64%	410,904	191,791	46.68%	
26-35	1,245,606	652,838	52.41%	668,161	351,962	52.68%	
36-45	1,371,775	730,839	53.28%	626,510	322,307	51.44%	
46-55	1,378,903	716,280	51.95%	580,216	286,523	49.38%	
56-65	1,539,430	759,334	49.33%	622,475	293,978	47.23%	
66+	2,373,219	1,094,698	46.13%	893,100	410,296	45.94%	

¹⁶ **Turnout Number** - Number of accepted votes in the election (total counted Vote By Mail (VBM) ballots, Regular Vote Center ballots, Provisional ballots, CVR Provisional Ballots, and non-Provisional "Instant" CVR ballots).

"VBM ballots dropped off – Defined as accepted Vote by Mail (VBM) ballots that are categorized by the county as being returned by:

1. Drop Box – via a stand-alone unattended county drop box,

- 2. Drop Off location via any designated county attended drop off location other than a Vote Center, or
- 3. Vote Center Drop off via any SB 450 County Vote Center Drop Off location."

¹⁷ Note: These turnout rates reflect observed differences and do not account for underlying demographic or political factors across counties.

Share of Turnout - Share VBM ballots returned at ballot drop off locations and accepted out of voter turnout.

Unknown DOB	33	2	6.06%	1	0	0.00%
Total	8,829,302	4,392,476	49.75%	3,801,367	1,856,857	48.85%

The number of ballots returned at ballot drop-off locations by language¹⁸

		Non-VCA Counties (Non-VCA) - 2024 General Election			(VCA) - 2024 Ge	neral Election	State - 2024 General Election		
Language	Turnout Number	VBM ballots dropped off	Share of Turnout	Turnout Number	VBM ballots dropped off	Share of Turnout	Turnout Number	VBM ballots dropped off	Share of Turnout
Vietnamese	3,502	1,392	39.75%	73,008	31,815	43.58%	76,510	33,207	43.40%
Chinese	25,274	8,504	33.65%	65,305	28,355	43.42%	90,579	36,859	40.69%
English	3,380,213	1,589,720	47.03%	12,083,735	6,008,281	49.72%	15,463,948	7,598,001	49.13%
Hindi	836	283	33.85%	2,313	884	38.22%	3,149	1,167	37.06%
Japanese	417	148	35.49%	3,284	1,416	43.12%	3,701	1,564	42.26%
Khmer	228	70	30.70%	1,266	540	42.65%	1,494	610	40.83%
Korean	2,748	589	21.43%	40,543	11,395	28.11%	43,291	11,984	27.68%
Other	1,127	379	33.63%	9,749	3,686	37.81%	10,876	4,065	37.38%
Spanish	88,852	38,819	43.69%	340,360	158,699	46.63%	429,212	197,518	46.02%
Tagalog	2,037	634	31.12%	8,204	3,070	37.42%	10,241	3,704	36.17%
Thai	503	181	35.98%	2,902	1,192	41.08%	3,405	1,373	40.32%
Total	3,505,737	1,640,719	46.80%	12,630,669	6,249,333	49.48%	16,136,406	7,890,052	48.90%

	VCA Counties General Electi	Except LA (VCA) on	Los Angeles (VCA) - 2024 General Election			
Language	Turnout Number			Turnout Number	VBM ballots dropped off	Share of Turnout
Vietnamese	65,486	28,388	43.35%	7,522	3,427	45.56%
Chinese	37,752	16,168	42.83%	27,553	12,187	44.23%
English	8,519,661	4,259,265	49.99%	3,564,074	1,749,016	49.07%
Hindi	1,974	750	37.99%	339	134	39.53%
Japanese	1,491	638	42.79%	1,793	778	43.39%

¹⁸ Note: These turnout rates reflect observed differences and do not account for underlying demographic or political factors across counties.

Khmer	578	202	34.95%	688	338	49.13%
Korean	18,093	5,450	30.12%	22,450	5,945	26.48%
Other	4,895	1,714	35.02%	4,854	1,972	40.63%
Spanish	173,261	77,651	44.82%	167,099	81,048	48.50%
Tagalog	5,013	1,815	36.21%	3,191	1,255	39.33%
Thai	1,098	435	39.62%	1,804	757	41.96%
Total	8,829,302	4,392,476	49.75%	3,801,367	1,856,857	48.85%

The number of ballots returned at ballot drop-off locations by political party¹⁹

	Non-VCA Cour General Electi	nties (Non-VCA) on	- 2024	VCA Counties	(VCA) - 2024 Ge	neral Election	State - 2024 General Election			
Political Party	Turnout Number	VBM ballots dropped off	Share of Turnout	Turnout Number	VBM ballots dropped off	Share of Turnout	Turnout Number	VBM ballots dropped off	Share of Turnout	
American Independent	139,377	62,153	44.59%	454,278	213,418	46.98%	593,655	275,571	46.42%	
Democratic	1,592,316	756,193	47.49%	6,089,860	3,208,610	52.69%	7,682,176	3,964,803	51.61%	
Green	14,746	6,821	46.26%	54,043	27,208	50.35%	68,789	34,029	49.47%	
Libertarian	32,895	15,115	45.95%	114,512	53,853	47.03%	147,407	68,968	46.79%	
No Party Preference	599,280	268,497	44.80%	2,368,638	1,130,001	47.71%	2,967,918	1,398,498	47.12%	
Other	19,475	8,698	44.66%	73,932	33,279	45.01%	93,407	41,977	44.94%	
Peace and Freedom	12,749	5,639	44.23%	45,262	21,849	48.27%	58,011	27,488	47.38%	
Republican	1,081,016	512,305	47.39%	3,394,278	1,548,457	45.62%	4,475,294	2,060,762	46.05%	
Unknown	13,883	5,298	38.16%	35,866	12,658	35.29%	49,749	17,956	36.09%	
Total	3,505,737	1,640,719	46.80%	12,630,669	6,249,333	49.48%	16,136,406	7,890,052	48.90%	

	VCA Counties General Electi	Except LA (VCA) on) - 2024	Los Angeles (VCA) - 2024 General Election			
Political Party	Turnout Number				VBM ballots dropped off	Share of Turnout	
American Independent	337,071	159,872	47.43%	117,207	53,546	45.68%	
Democratic	3,996,749	2,082,082	52.09%	2,093,111	1,126,528	53.82%	

¹⁹ Note: These turnout rates reflect observed differences and do not account for underlying demographic or political factors across counties.

Green	38,294	19,245	50.26%	15,749	7,963	50.56%
Libertarian	86,430	41,225	47.70%	28,082	12,628	44.97%
No Party Preference	1,654,748	798,503	48.26%	713,890	331,498	46.44%
Other	48,833	22,202	45.47%	25,099	11,077	44.13%
Peace and Freedom	29,276	14,172	48.41%	15,986	7,677	48.02%
Republican	2,618,363	1,248,676	47.69%	775,915	299,781	38.64%
Unknown	19,538	6,499	33.26%	16,328	6,159	37.72%
Total	8,829,302	4,392,476	49.75%	3,801,367	1,856,857	48.85%

(ix) The number of ballots returned by mail²⁰²¹

The number of ballots returned by mail by age

	Non-VCA Cour General Electi	nties (Non-VCA) on	- 2024	VCA Counties	(VCA) - 2024 Ge	neral Election	State - 2024 Ge Election	State - 2024 General Election		
Age Range	Turnout Number	Mailed VBMs	Share of Turnout	Turnout Number	Mailed VBMs	Share of Turnout	Turnout Number	Mailed VBMs	Share of Turnout	
18-25	365,276	100,292	27.46%	1,331,240	311,231	23.38%	1,696,516	411,523	24.26%	
26-35	518,949	139,891	26.96%	1,913,767	414,051	21.64%	2,432,716	553,942	22.77%	
36-45	560,855	163,831	29.21%	1,998,285	484,820	24.26%	2,559,140	648,651	25.35%	
46-55	525,365	179,299	34.13%	1,959,119	557,917	28.48%	2,484,484	737,216	29.67%	
56-65	599,537	244,291	40.75%	2,161,905	735,738	34.03%	2,761,442	980,029	35.49%	
66+	935,749	478,313	51.12%	3,266,319	1,424,581	43.61%	4,202,068	1,902,894	45.28%	
Uknown DOB	6	0	0.00%	34	0	0.00%	40	0	0.00%	
Total	3,505,737	1,305,917	37.25%	12,630,669	3,928,338	31.10%	16,136,406	5,234,255	32.44%	

	VCA Counties General Electi	Except LA (VCA) on) - 2024	Los Angeles (VCA) - 2024 General Election			
Age Range	Turnout Number	Mailed VBMs	Mailed VBMs Share of Turnout		Mailed VBMs	Share of Turnout	
18-25	920,336	245,932	26.72%	410,904	65,299	15.89%	
26-35	1,245,606	316,382	25.40%	668,161	97,669	14.62%	
36-45	1,371,775	376,675	27.46%	626,510	108,145	17.26%	
46-55	1,378,903	436,950	31.69%	580,216	120,967	20.85%	
56-65	1,539,430	574,060	37.29%	622,475	161,678	25.97%	
66+	2,373,219	1,097,164	46.23%	893,100	327,417	36.66%	
Uknown DOB	33	0	0.00%	1	0	0.00%	
Total	8,829,302	3,047,163	34.51%	3,801,367	881,175	23.18%	

²⁰ **Turnout Number** - Number of accepted votes in the election (total counted Vote By Mail (VBM) ballots, Regular Vote Center ballots, Provisional ballots, CVR Provisional Ballots, and non-Provisional "Instant" CVR ballots).

Mailed VBMs - Number of accepted VBM ballots categorized by the county as being returned via the mail.

Share of Turnout - Share of accepted VBM ballots returned by mail out of voter turnout

²¹ Note: These turnout rates reflect observed differences and do not account for underlying demographic or political factors across counties.

The number of ballots returned by mail by language

		Non-VCA Counties (Non-VCA) - 2024 General Election			VCA Counties (VCA) - 2024 General Election			State - 2024 General Election		
Language	Turnout Number	Mailed VBMs	Share of Turnout	Turnout Number	Mailed VBMs	Share of Turnout	Turnout Number	Mailed VBMs	Share of Turnout	
Chinese	25,274	14,926	59.06%	65,305	27,394	41.95%	90,579	42,320	46.72%	
English	3,380,213	1,249,069	36.95%	12,083,735	3,723,620	30.82%	15,463,948	4,972,689	32.16%	
Hindi	836	450	53.83%	2,313	982	42.46%	3,149	1,432	45.47%	
Japanese	417	230	55.16%	3,284	1,434	43.67%	3,701	1,664	44.96%	
Khmer	228	115	50.44%	1,266	465	36.73%	1,494	580	38.82%	
Korean	2,748	1,951	71.00%	40,543	25,396	62.64%	43,291	27,347	63.17%	
Other	1,127	488	43.30%	9,749	4,066	41.71%	10,876	4,554	41.87%	
Spanish	88,852	35,518	39.97%	340,360	108,678	31.93%	429,212	144,196	33.60%	
Tagalog	2,037	1,161	57.00%	8,204	4,024	49.05%	10,241	5,185	50.63%	
Thai	503	268	53.28%	2,902	1,267	43.66%	3,405	1,535	45.08%	
Vietnamese	3,502	1,741	49.71%	73,008	31,012	42.48%	76,510	32,753	42.81%	
Total	3,505,737	1,305,917	37.25%	12,630,669	3,928,338	31.10%	16,136,406	5,234,255	32.44%	

	VCA Counties General Electi	Except LA (VCA on) - 2024	Los Angeles (VCA) - 2024 General Election			
Language	Turnout Number	Mailed VBMs	Mailed VBMs Share of T Turnout N		Mailed VBMs	Share of Turnout	
Chinese	37,752	17,435	46.18%	27,553	9,959	36.14%	
English	8,519,661	2,917,138	34.24%	3,564,074	806,482	22.63%	
Hindi	1,974	870	44.07%	339	112	33.04%	
Japanese	1,491	710	47.62%	1,793	724	40.38%	
Khmer	578	264	45.67%	688	201	29.22%	
Korean	18,093	11,080	61.24%	22,450	14,316	63.77%	
Other	4,895	2,142	43.76%	4,854	1,924	39.64%	
Spanish	173,261	65,967	38.07%	167,099	42,711	25.56%	
Tagalog	5,013	2,589	51.65%	3,191	1,435	44.97%	

Thai	1,098	528	48.09%	1,804	739	40.96%
Vietnamese	65,486	28,440	43.43%	7,522	2,572	34.19%
Total	8,829,302	3,047,163	34.51%	3,801,367	881,175	23.18%

The number of ballots returned by mail by political party

		Non-VCA Counties (Non-VCA) - 2024 General Election			VCA Counties (VCA) - 2024 General Election			State - 2024 General Election		
Political Party	Turnout Number	Mailed VBMs	Share of Turnout	Turnout Number	Mailed VBMs	Share of Turnout	Turnout Number	Mailed VBMs	Share of Turnout	
American Independent	139,377	53,242	38.20%	454,278	147,023	32.36%	593,655	200,265	33.73%	
Democratic	1,592,316	629,052	39.51%	6,089,860	1,932,389	31.73%	7,682,176	2,561,441	33.34%	
Green	14,746	5,092	34.53%	54,043	15,168	28.07%	68,789	20,260	29.45%	
Libertarian	32,895	10,773	32.75%	114,512	32,384	28.28%	147,407	43,157	29.28%	
No Party Preference	599,280	215,265	35.92%	2,368,638	712,359	30.07%	2,967,918	927,624	31.26%	
Other	19,475	6,633	34.06%	73,932	20,277	27.43%	93,407	26,910	28.81%	
Peace and Freedom	12,749	4,035	31.65%	45,262	11,170	24.68%	58,011	15,205	26.21%	
Republican	1,081,016	376,858	34.86%	3,394,278	1,048,054	30.88%	4,475,294	1,424,912	31.84%	
Unknown	13,883	4,967	35.78%	35,866	9,514	26.53%	49,749	14,481	29.11%	
Total	3,505,737	1,305,917	37.25%	12,630,669	3,928,338	31.10%	16,136,406	5,234,255	32.44%	

	VCA Counties General Electi	Except LA (VCA) on) - 2024	Los Angeles (VCA) - 2024 General Election			
Political Party	Turnout Number			Turnout Number	Mailed VBMs	Share of Turnout	
American Independent	337,071	120,143	35.64%	117,207	26,880	22.93%	
Democratic	3,996,749	1,444,434	36.14%	2,093,111	487,955	23.31%	
Green	38,294	12,081	31.55%	15,749	3,087	19.60%	
Libertarian	86,430	26,893	31.12%	28,082	5,491	19.55%	
No Party Preference	1,654,748	554,341	33.50%	713,890	158,018	22.13%	
Other	48,833	14,764	30.23%	25,099	5,513	21.97%	
Peace and Freedom	29,276	8,441	28.83%	15,986	2,729	17.07%	
Republican	2,618,363	860,501	32.86%	775,915	187,553	24.17%	

1500 11th Street | Sacramento, CA 95814 | **Tel** 916.653.7244 | **Fax** 916.653.4620 | <u>www.sos.ca.gov</u>

Unknown	19,538	5,565	28.48%	16,328	3,949	24.19%
Total	8,829,302	3,047,163	34.51%	3,801,367	881,175	23.18%

(x) The number of persons who registered to vote at a vote center²²

The number of persons who registered to vote at a vote center by age range

	Non-VCA Cour General Electi	nties (Non-VCA) on	- 2024	VCA Counties (VCA) - 2024 General Election			State - 2024 General Election		
Age Range	Turnout Number	Number Registered	Share of Turnout	Turnout Number	Number Registered	Share of Turnout	Turnout Number	Number Registered	Share of Turnout
18-25	365,276	25,871	7.08%	1,331,240	123,319	9.26%	1,696,516	149,190	8.79%
26-35	518,949	17,661	3.40%	1,913,767	82,522	4.31%	2,432,716	100,183	4.12%
36-45	560,855	10,952	1.95%	1,998,285	46,971	2.35%	2,559,140	57,923	2.26%
46-55	525,365	6,359	1.21%	1,959,119	28,449	1.45%	2,484,484	34,808	1.40%
56-65	599,537	5,018	0.84%	2,161,905	23,005	1.06%	2,761,442	28,023	1.01%
66+	935,749	3,874	0.41%	3,266,319	19,626	0.60%	4,202,068	23,500	0.56%
Unknown DOB	6	6	100.00%	34	28	82.35%	40	34	85.00%
Total	3,505,737	69,741	1.99%	12,630,669	323,920	2.56%	16,136,406	393,661	2.44%

	VCA Counties General Electi	Except LA (VCA) on) - 2024	Los Angeles (VCA) - 2024 General Election			
Age Range	Turnout Number			Turnout Number	Number Registered	Share of Turnout	
18-25	920,336	85,226	9.26%	410,904	38,093	9.27%	
26-35	1,245,606	55,310	4.44%	668,161	27,212	4.07%	
36-45	1,371,775	32,773	2.39%	626,510	14,198	2.27%	
46-55	1,378,903	19,629	1.42%	580,216	8,820	1.52%	
56-65	1,539,430	15,418	1.00%	622,475	7,587	1.22%	
66+	2,373,219	12,536	0.53%	893,100	7,090	0.79%	
Unknown DOB	33	27	81.82%	1	1	100.00%	
Total	8,829,302	220,919	2.50%	3,801,367	103,001	2.71%	

²² **Turnout Number** - Number of accepted votes in the election (total counted Vote By Mail (VBM) ballots, Regular Vote Center ballots, Provisional ballots, CVR Provisional Ballots, and non-Provisional "Instant" CVR ballots).

Number Registered - All newly registered voters at Vote Centers/Polling placed. CVR (Provisional and non-provisional/"instant CVR") ballots counted. **Share of Turnout** - Share of counted CVR (Provisional and non-Provisional) ballots out of voter turnout.

The number of persons who registered to vote at a vote center by language

	Non-VCA Cour	Non-VCA Counties (Non-VCA) - 2024 General Election			VCA Counties (VCA) - 2024 General Election			State - 2024 General Election		
Language	General Electi									
	Turnout Number	Number Registered	Share of Turnout	Turnout Number	Number Registered	Share of Turnout	Turnout Number	Number Registered	Share of Turnout	
Chinese	25,274	167	0.66%	65,305	1,283	1.96%	90,579	1,450	1.60%	
English	3,380,213	67,650	2.00%	12,083,735	312,438	2.59%	15,463,948	380,088	2.46%	
Hindi	836	20	2.39%	2,313	120	5.19%	3,149	140	4.45%	
Japanese	417	3	0.72%	3,284	53	1.61%	3,701	56	1.51%	
Khmer	228	12	5.26%	1,266	55	4.34%	1,494	67	4.48%	
Korean	2,748	19	0.69%	40,543	375	0.92%	43,291	394	0.91%	
Other	1,127	86	7.63%	9,749	636	6.52%	10,876	722	6.64%	
Spanish	88,852	1,698	1.91%	340,360	6,727	1.98%	429,212	8,425	1.96%	
Tagalog	2,037	26	1.28%	8,204	193	2.35%	10,241	219	2.14%	
Thai	503	6	1.19%	2,902	63	2.17%	3,405	69	2.03%	
Vietnamese	3,502	54	1.54%	73,008	1,977	2.71%	76,510	2,031	2.65%	
Total	3,505,737	69,741	1.99%	12,630,669	323,920	2.56%	16,136,406	393,661	2.44%	

	VCA Counties General Electi	Except LA (VCA)) - 2024	Los Angeles (VCA) - 2024 General Election			
Language	Turnout Number	Number Registered	Share of Turnout	Turnout Number	Number Registered	Share of Turnout	
Chinese	37,752	908	2.41%	27,553	375	1.36%	
English	8,519,661	211,885	2.49%	3,564,074	100,553	2.82%	
Hindi	1,974	116	5.88%	339	4	1.18%	
Japanese	1,491	35	2.35%	1,793	18	1.00%	
Khmer	578	41	7.09%	688	14	2.03%	
Korean	18,093	248	1.37%	22,450	127	0.57%	
Other	4,895	541	11.05%	4,854	95	1.96%	
Spanish	173,261	5,050	2.91%	167,099	1,677	1.00%	
Tagalog	5,013	164	3.27%	3,191	29	0.91%	
Thai	1,098	37	3.37%	1,804	26	1.44%	

Vietnamese	65,486	1,894	2.89%	7,522	83	1.10%
Total	8,829,302	220,919	2.50%	3,801,367	103,001	2.71%

The number of persons who registered to vote at a vote center by political party

	Non-VCA Counties (Non-VCA) - 2024 General Election			VCA Counties (VCA) - 2024 General Election			State - 2024 General Election		
Political Party	Turnout	Number	Share of	Turnout	Number	Share of	Turnout	Number	Share of
	Number	Registered	Turnout	Number	Registered	Turnout	Number	Registered	Turnout
American Independent	139,377	2,866	2.06%	454,278	11,672	2.57%	593,655	14,538	2.45%
Democratic	1,592,316	22,564	1.42%	6,089,860	113,022	1.86%	7,682,176	135,586	1.76%
Green	14,746	383	2.60%	54,043	2,033	3.76%	68,789	2,416	3.51%
Libertarian	32,895	608	1.85%	114,512	2,976	2.60%	147,407	3,584	2.43%
No Party Preference	599,280	21,611	3.61%	2,368,638	109,703	4.63%	2,967,918	131,314	4.42%
Other	19,475	575	2.95%	73,932	4,625	6.26%	93,407	5,200	5.57%
Peace and Freedom	12,749	454	3.56%	45,262	1,836	4.06%	58,011	2,290	3.95%
Republican	1,081,016	19,848	1.84%	3,394,278	72,657	2.14%	4,475,294	92,505	2.07%
Unknown	13,883	832	5.99%	35,866	5,396	15.04%	49,749	6,228	12.52%
Total	3,505,737	69,741	1.99%	12,630,669	323,920	2.56%	16,136,406	393,661	2.44%

	VCA Counties General Electi	Except LA (VCA) on) - 2024	Los Angeles (VCA) - 2024 General Election			
Political Party	Turnout Number	Number Registered	Share of Turnout	Turnout Number	Number Registered	Share of Turnout	
American Independent	337,071	8,407	2.49%	117,207	3,265	2.79%	
Democratic	3,996,749	76,371	1.91%	2,093,111	36,651	1.75%	
Green	38,294	1,516	3.96%	15,749	517	3.28%	
Libertarian	86,430	2,208	2.55%	28,082	768	2.73%	
No Party Preference	1,654,748	69,284	4.19%	713,890	40,419	5.66%	
Other	48,833	3,778	7.74%	25,099	847	3.37%	
Peace and Freedom	29,276	1,259	4.30%	15,986	577	3.61%	
Republican	2,618,363	53,377	2.04%	775,915	19,280	2.48%	
Unknown	19,538	4,719	24.15%	16,328	677	4.15%	

Total	8,829,302	220,919	2.50%	3,801,367	103,001	2.71%